
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., November 12, 2024 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Monday, November 04, 2024 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, November 10, 2024 
 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – October 15, 2024 

                                                                            

                                                              

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2025-003 …………………………………………………………          1 - 2 

Resolution approving Above-Step Recruitment for the Accountant II  

(Permanent Position) 

2. Resolution No. FY2025-004 …………………………………………………………         3 - 10 

Resolution authorizing the Section Eight Management Assessment 

Program (SEMAP) Certification (Form HUD-52648) for Fiscal Year 

Ending 2024 

3. Resolution No. FY2025-005 …………………………………………………………       11 - 15 

Resolution to adopt the revised Housing Choice Voucher Program 

Administrative Plan that include changes mandated by the Housing 

Opportunities Through Modernization Act (HOTMA) of 2016 

4. Resolution No. FY2025-006 …………………………………………………………      16 - 22 

Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2025 Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program Utility Allowance Schedule and Additional Allowances 

for Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with disabilities 

5. Resolution No. FY2025-007 ………………………………………………………….     23 - 27 

Resolution approving Fiscal Year 2025 Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program Payment Standards 

6. Resolution No. FY2025-008 …………………………………………………………..          

Resolution to extend loan funds to Manelu by GHURA 

 

 

 



 

 

V. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, November 26, 2024 

@ 12:00 p.m.   

 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 







 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2024                                                       Page 1 of 6 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., October 15, 2024 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of 
the Authority, the Board of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to 
order at 12:00 P.M., Tuesday, October 15, 2024, at the GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor 
Conference room. Vice Chairman Sanchez indicated that 5 of 6 members of the Board of 
Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as 
scheduled. 

 
Viewed 
virtually via 

ZOOM: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82377360741?pwd=OZYi2ObvwaS4a9hVwivbym9r0OGqiJ.1  

YOUTUBE: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                        Virtual              In-Person 
Nate Sanchez, Vice Chairman                                  Virtual             In-Person   

Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                      Virtual            In-Person   
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                       Virtual             In-Person   
Victor Torres, Commissioner                                   Virtual             In-Person    

Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                     Virtual             In-Person    
*There were no virtual attendance requests. 

GHURA 
Management/ 
Staff  

Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director        Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator     Carlo Ongklungel  
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director          Sonny Perez, AE Manager  
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                    Norma San Nicolas   

Frances Danieli, Controller                              Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager  
Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner        Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager  
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator    Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager  
Antonio Camacho, Procurement                    Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager  

Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager □                         Jolyn Terlaje   
Nicole Alejandro □                                                 Miguel Fernandez           
Michael Ricuyal    □                                               Ervin Santiago     

Maria Cherry Canete                                         Patrick Luces  
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig Jr., GHURA’s Legal Counsel   
 

Public Nino Resneno, Ernst and Young  
Rizalito Paglingayen, Ernst and Young 

 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, October 8, 2024 
    2nd Printing – Sunday, October 13, 2024    
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag


 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2024                                                       Page 2 of 6 
 

 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES: [345/24] Vice Chairman Sanchez         

moved to approve the board meeting minutes of September 24, 2024 subject to 

corrections. Commissioner Rice seconded the motion. There were no objections by 

the other commissioners. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. 
FY2025-001- 
Resolution 
approving the 
Write-Off Tenant 
Accounts 
Receivable  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[346/24] Acting Executive Director Esteves 
read Resolution FY2025-001, Resolution 
approving the Write-Off Tenant Accounts 
Receivable on page 1 of 143 in the October 
15 GHURA BoC packet. 

Chairman Rivera indicated that the numbers 
provided to the board were not unlike numbers 
presented in the past. Acting Executive Director 
Esteves added that even though GHURA is 
writing off the accounts after having exhausted 
reasonable opportunities to collect, accounts 
are still put on hold. Should tenants with 
outstanding balances apply for other housing 
programs or at another housing authority, tax 
returns may be garnished, so there is still an 
opportunity to collect.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[347/24] Vice Chairman 

Sanchez moved to 

approve Resolution 

No.FY2024-001, 

Resolution approving the 

Write-Off Tenant 

Accounts Receivable. 

Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2024                                                       Page 3 of 6 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

2. Resolution No. 
FY2025-002-
Resolution 
authorizing the 
Guam Telephone 
Authority (GTA) 
to conduct 
infrastructure 
work on GHURA 
property.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

[348/24] Acting Executive Director Esteves 
read the supporting documentation on page 
15 of 143 and Resolution FY2024-002, 
Resolution authorizing the Guam Telephone 
Authority (GTA) to conduct infrastructure 
work on GHURA property on page 16 of 143 
in the GHURA BoC packet of Oct. 15, 2024. 

Vice Chairman Sanchez inquired about whether 
other telecom companies requested to do the 
scope of work. Acting Director Esteves stated 
that no other telecom company has reached out 
to GHURA regarding infrastructure upgrades.  

Commissioner Corpus asked whether the 
existing wiring would be affected by the 
upgrades. Acting Director Esteves indicated 
that the understanding is that GTA will access 
existing conduits. It should not take away 
services but provide additional service.  

Chairman Rivera requested that GHURA do its 
due diligence in maximizing the timeline to 
complete the infrastructure upgrades and 
provide the multiple services to the tenants as 
efficiently as possible.  
 
Mr. Eliseo Florig, Jr., Legal Counsel, clarified the 
heading of Resolution No. FY2025-22 and 
recommended it be read as Teleguam Holdings, 
LLC (GTA). 

Vice Chairman Sanchez requested that GHURA 
inquire with GTA an estimated time frame of 
the completion of the project. Acting Director 
Esteves proposed that the board momentarily 
recess to propose language to have revocation 
added to the resolution.  

Mr. Florig indicated that another clause may be 
added to the resolution, or the board may 
consider giving the executive director the 
authorization to revoke the approval at any 
time for cause. Chairman Rivera indicated that 
a common language stating that the board gives 
authority to the executive director to revoke 
the approval at any time for cause should be 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2024                                                       Page 4 of 6 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 used moving forward. Mr. Florig sated that the 
board can decide on that, and the language can 
be added to the resolution and signed by the 
Chairman. Chairman Rivera requested that the 
language be included in future resolutions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[349/24] Commissioner 

Torres moved to approve 

Resolution No. FY2025-

002, resolution 

authorizing Teleguam 

Holdings, LLC. (GTA) to 

conduct infrastructure 

work on GHURA 

property subject to the 

amended 

recommendations.  

Mr. Florig added that the 

amendments will  

include the name change 

to Teleguam Holdings, 

LLC. (GTA), upgrades to 

be included in the title, 

and to authorize the 

executive director to be 

able to remove or cease 

service or installation of 

fiber optics for cause.  

 

Vice Chairman Sanchez 

seconded the motion.  

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed unanimously.  

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2024                                                       Page 5 of 6 
 

V. CORRESPONDENCE AND REPORTS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. FY2023 Audit Report [350/24] Acting Executive Director 
Esteves turned the floor to Mrs. 
Frances Danieli, GHURA Controller.  

Mrs. Danieli introduced Mr. Rizalito 
Paglingayen and Mr. Nino Resneno, 
representatives of Ernst and Young to 
present GHURA’s 2023 Fiscal Audit 
report.  

 

Mr. Pagligayen presented the audit 
findings report for FY2023 on pages 18-
143 in the GHURA BoC packet of October 
15, 2024.  

Acting Director Esteves asked if the 
carryover was because the FY2022 was 
not fully received. Mrs. Danieli confirmed 
this and added that the FY2022 was not 
entered into FDS earlier. She indicated 
that FY2019, FY2020, and FY2021 were 
not entered into FDS, which caused 
difficulty in the balance sheet items and 
carrying it forward. Chairman Rivera 
stated that this had been a known issue of 
GHURA being able to upload and not 
being able to submit subsequent data 
because of the chain that it needed to be 
uploaded in a sequence.  

On behalf of the board, Chairman Rivera 
thanked EY for being great partners, to 
GHURA’s leadership team and to Ms. 
Danieli and her team for all their hard 
work. He added that the board fully 
supports all GHURA’s efforts.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No Action taken. 

 



 

 

GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of October 15, 2024                                                       Page 6 of 6 
 

VI. GENERAL DISCUSSIONS / ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

Next proposed scheduled 
Board Meeting; October 29, 
2024 @ 12:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

(351/24) Chairman Rivera requested 
that commissioners mark their 
calendars and confirm with GHURA 
staff regarding attendance of the next 
scheduled meeting.  

 

No Action taken. 

 

VII. ADJOURNMENT: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

  [352/24] 

Commissioner Torres 

moved to adjourn the 

October 15, 2024 

meeting. 

Commissioner Corpus 

seconded the motion. 

There were no 

objections. Motion 

passed. The meeting 

was adjourned at 

12:55p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
SEAL 
 
              ______________________________ 
        Elizabeth F. Napoli 
        Board Secretary/Executive 
Director 
   
        Date __________________________ 

    



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION NO. FY2025-003 

 
 
Moved by:                    Seconded by:    ________                         . 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING ABOVE-STEP RECRUITMENT FOR THE ACCOUNTANT 
II (PERMANENT POSITION) 

 
 

WHEREAS, Under the enabling legislation of the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, its 
Board of Commissioners is empowered “to employ officers, technical 
experts, agents and employees, permanent and temporary as it may 
deem necessary; and shall determine their qualifications, duties, tenure 
and compensation...”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Title 4 of the Guam Code Annotated, “…The appointing authority, or the 

head of an agency, department or public corporation listed in 4 
GCA,§4105(a) may petition the Director of Administration, the Judicial 
Council (as to Judicial Branch employment) or the agency, department or 
public corporation’s governing board or commission (as to an agency, 
department or public corporation listed in 4GCA §4105(a)) for recruitment 
at a higher step not to exceed Step 10, because of documented difficulty 
or exceptional qualifications……”; and 

 

WHEREAS, despite recruitment difficulty, both our current and past auditors have 
recommended that the Authority add additional accounting staff to the 
Authority’s fiscal division; and 

 
WHEREAS, although this accounting position specifically falls under the 

Modernization section, her position continues to augment the accounting 
division in addressing grant reconciliation, maintaining general ledger 
accounts for the Capital Fund Program; and   

 
WHEREAS, with the completion of the recruitment of the Accountant II permanent 

position and having been issued the job offer, Ms. Naricel T. Carlos 
submitted her request to Executive Management requesting to petition 
the GHURA Board of Commissioners for an above the minimum step 
recruitment for the position of Accountant II based on exceptional 
qualifications; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ms. Carlos’ exceptional qualifications for the Accountant II position 

consists of the following: 
 

• College degree – Bachelor’s degree in Accounting.    Holy Angel University – 

Philippines, 2000.   

• Work Experience - private sector – with over 20 years in financial accounting:  

1) Contractor – Mobil Guam, Inc. – Supply Assistant, Financial  

  Accountant/ Bank Reconciliation Analyst, 11 years 

2) GNN Corporation dba Harmon Drug – Accounts Receivable Clerk, 5  

  years 

3) Bank of Florida (Philippines) – Loan Subsidiary Assistant, 2 years 

 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 1 of 27



4) Venutek Medika (Philippines) – Sales/Accounting, 4 years 

 

• Other special notes:  

o Under Mobil Guam traveled to Thailand to participate in setting up 

and implementing a new accounting system software 

o Traveled to Papua New Guinea to close audit gaps under Mobil 

Guam  

 

• Hired as a temporary employee, Ms. Carlos’ addition to the MOD/Fiscal team 

improved the level of efficiency and effectiveness of both the MOD Section and 

the Fiscal Division.  For example, in just a short six (6) months, Ms. Carlos made 

key accomplishments reconciling the Capital Fund Program (CFP) grants from 

2003 to 2019, representing 16 years worth of needed reconciliation.  

 
WHEREAS, Management believes the compensation package of salary and benefits 

(i.e. retirement, holidays, annual/sick leave etc.) is reasonable and 
respectfully requests an above step recruitment of Ms. Carlos, MG5-8(A), 
$65,536.00 p/a; $31.51 p/hr; and   

 
WHEREAS, the GHURA Board recognizes that it has the discretionary authority to go 

below or beyond management’s recommendations (i.e., MG5-2(A), 
$46,200.00 p/a; $22.21 p/hr through MG5-10(F), $77,297.00 p/a; $37.16 
p/hr - maximum), but supports management’s request for the above-step 
recruitment; and 

 
WHEREAS, Funding for this position is available from the Capital Fund Program 

Funds; and be it further  
 

RESOLVED, that in consideration of the applicant’s exceptional knowledge and 
experience, the GHURA Board of Commissioners grants the above-step 
requirement for:  
 

Ms. Naricel T. Carlos, MG5-8(A), $65,536.00 p/a; $31.51 p/hr. 
 
 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – NOVEMBER 12, 2024 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 
AYES:  
NAYES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINED:  

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, 
and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted 
by the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 
Authority Board of Commissioners on 
November 12, 2024. 

        (SEAL)  
 

 

               ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 
    Board Secretary / Executive Director 

 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 2 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 3 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 4 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 5 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 6 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 7 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 8 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 9 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 10 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 11 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 12 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 13 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 14 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 15 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 16 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 17 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 18 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 19 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 20 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 21 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 22 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 23 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 24 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 25 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 26 of 27



 
Board Meeting of November 12, 2024

 
PAGE 27 of 27




